
 
 

Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, January 21, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30 p m.  At 6:00 
p m. and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive Session. If an 
Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Meeting will be convened at 7:00 p m. Study 
Sessions and Regular Meetings are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. Comments from the public are welcome at 
these two occasions during the meeting: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not scheduled for a public hearing) 2. 
Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed to attend (at least 24 hours in advance).

 
4:30 pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Park Meadows Metropolitan District 2014 Projects Update 
2. Community Garden Update 
3. Future Agenda Item: Ordinance 14-XX, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE PROVISIONS 

RELATED TO MARIJUANA OFFENSES DUE TO PASSAGE OF COLORADO 
CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT 64 

4. Future Agenda Item: Ordinance 14-XX, SUBMITTING A CHARTER AMENDMENT TO 
CITY REGISTERED ELECTORS AT THE MAY 6, 2014 REGULAR ELECTION, 
AMENDING THE CITY OF LONE TREE HOME RULE CHARTER TO REQUIRE A 
MAJORITY VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND PROVIDING FOR RUNOFF 
ELECTIONS FOR MAYOR  

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 
8. Presentations 
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the January 7, 2014 Special Meeting 
b. Minutes of the January 7, 2014 Regular Meeting 
c. Claims for the Period of December 30, 2013 – January 13, 2014 
d. Treasurer’s Report for November 2013 

10. Community Development 
11. Police Department 
12. Public Works 
13. Administrative Matters 

a. Public Hearing: Approval of Hotel & Restaurant Liquor License for GMRI, Inc. dba 
Seasons 52 #4544 (8325 Park Meadows Center Drive) 

b. Approval of 2014 Douglas County Youth Initiative IGA 
c. Resolution 14-01, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE YOUTH COMMISSION 

(Kate Schaffer) 
14. Council Comments 
15. Adjournment 

 01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 2 January 7, 2014 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

January 7, 2014 
 

A special meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
January 7, 2014, at 2:30 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
Gary White, City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
Carolyn White, Special Counsel 
Jack W.L. Hidahl, City Manager Emeritus 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 2:41 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Executive Session 

Mayor Gunning announced City Council intends to convene in Executive Session.  
Gary White, City Attorney, stated the Executive Session is for the purpose of 
determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, 
developing strategies for negotiations, personnel matters, and/or instructing 
negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402 (4)(e) with special counsel regarding 
RidgeGate negotiations.   Council Member Anderson moved, seconded by 
Council Member Squyer, for City Council to recess and convene in Executive 
Session for the reasons stated.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Council adjourned to an Executive Session at 2:42 p.m. 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 2 January 7, 2014 

Council concluded the Executive Session at 4:10 p.m. 
 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at 4:11 
p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 7 January 7, 2014 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

January 7, 2014 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
January 7, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located at 
8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Robert Johnson, Internal Services Director 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TST, Inc. 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Jack W.L. Hidahl, City Manager Emeritus 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 7 January 7, 2014 

Conflict of Interest 
There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Announcements 

Caroline Hauer, Youth Commissioner, gave Council an update on the Youth 
Commission. 
______ 
  

Public Comment 
Doug MacGregor, 7434 Indian Wells Cove, wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
David Lawful, 9192 Prairie Sky Lane, spoke to Council about concerns he has 
with safe cycling in parts of the city. Mr. Lawful said he was glad to see that the 
2008 comprehensive plan was in place but the plan focuses on recreational 
cycling and he would encourage Council to look at other cycling uses. He stated 
he feels Lone Tree Parkway is safe to bike, walk and drive and would encourage 
Council to make that a standard for the City. Mr. Lawful said he believes there are 
issues with access and connectivity and signage in the city. He recommended bike 
lanes be established along Park Meadows Blvd. and Park Meadows Drive. Mr. 
Lawful said if bike lanes are not feasible, he would recommend Sharrows (arrows 
w/bicycle symbols) be placed on the roadway. 
 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, stated the City has received a $99,999 grant 
for bicycle planning and one of the first areas they are planning on focusing is 
Lincoln, Yosemite and Park Meadows Drive. 
 
Victor Williams, 9564 Los Colinas Dr., shared his frustration with Council for 
getting to the E470 trail and be able to use arterial streets to access. He said he felt 
Lincoln worked better when there weren’t medians. Mr. Williams also shared that 
his daughter rides with him and his concerns for her safety. 
 
Todd McCusker, 7796 LeBrun, thanked City Council for listening to the cycling 
concerns and taking steps to address the concerns. 
______  
  

Announcements cont. 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 

Presentations 
There were no presentations. 
______  
 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of:  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 7 January 7, 2014 

§ Minutes of the December 17, 2013 Regular Meeting 
§ Claims for the period of December 9-30, 2013 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve the 
Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 
   

 
Community Development 

Public Hearing: ORDINANCE 13-12, AMENDING THE SUBDIVISION 
CODE (Second Reading) File #SP13-41  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:17 p.m. 
  
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:18 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment.   
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:18 p.m.  
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 13-12, AMENDING THE SUBDIVISION CODE on second reading.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
  
 

Administrative Matters 
Public Hearing: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License Application for J&L 
Concepts, LLC dba Cranelli’s (10047 Park Meadows Drive, Unit F) 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:19 p.m. 
  
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk, introduced the item. She also introduced Lasinda 
and James Crane, applicants and Carol Johnson, surveyor. Mr. and Mrs. Crane 
spoke about the application and restaurant and answered questions from Council.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:26 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment.   
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:26 p.m.  
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to 
approve a new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for J&L Concepts, LLC dba 
Cranelli’s located at 10047 Park Meadows Drive, Unit F. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of 7 January 7, 2014 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
7:38 p.m. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 

  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 5 of 7 January 7, 2014 

FINDINGS AND REPORT TO STATE LICENSING AUTHORITY BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF LONE TREE ACTING AS THE 

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY ON THE APPLICATION FOR A  
J&L CONCEPTS, LLC DBA CRANELLI’S LIQUOR LICENSE 

 
J&L CONCEPTS, LLC DBA CRANELLI’S 

 
A public hearing was held by the City Council of Lone Tree, State of Colorado, acting as Local 
Licensing Authority at approximately 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 7, 2014 at 8527 Lone Tree 
Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado, on the application of J&L Concepts, LLC dba Cranelli’s,10047 
Park Meadows Dr., Unit F, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124.          

                                                                               

At said hearing, the following Members of the Council were present: 

 Mayor James D. Gunning 

 Mayor Pro Tem Jackie Millet 

 Council Member Harold Anderson 

Council Member Kim Monson 

Council Member Susan Squyer 

 
Also present were:  

Seth Hoffman, City Manager 

Lasinda Crane, Applicant 

James Crane, Applicant 

Carol Johnson, Petitioner  

 

The Honorable Mayor James D. Gunning presided.  The hearing was duly convened to 
consider the Application and conduct a public hearing thereon. 

City Clerk Jennifer Pettinger noted that the City Council was in receipt of a packet of 
information which contained copies of: the license application, individual history records, 
business license, Certificate of Good Standing, red-lined drawing of the premises, lease 
agreement, articles of organization and petition results.  She noted that staff has reviewed all the 
documents.  She directed that information be made a part of the record. 

City Clerk Jennifer Pettinger gave a brief presentation concerning the application and 
provided evidence of posting to the Council.  Ms. Pettinger introduced Lasinda and James Crane, 
Applicants, and Carol Johnson, Petitioner. Lasinda and James Crane spoke about the application.  

The petitions supporting the application were reviewed and found to be in accordance 
with and in conformity with the City of Lone Tree Liquor and Fermented Malt Beverage 
Regulations and were accepted into evidence by the Authority. 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 6 of 7 January 7, 2014 

Mayor Gunning opened the hearing for public testimony. No one came 
forward. 
 

Following a brief discussion by the City Council, the hearing was closed to public 
testimony. 
 

The City Council, acting as the Local Licensing Authority, having fully considered the 
application and testimony submitted by the Applicant, and the other evidence adduced at the 
hearing, NOW FINDS as follows: 

 
J&L CONCEPTS, LLC DBA CRANELLI’S 
Findings and Report to the State 
 

1. The public hearing held with respect to said Application for J&L Concepts, LLC dba 
Cranelli’s, was duly convened and the Council has jurisdiction to consider the 
Application as the Local Licensing Authority. 

 
2. Applicant seeks approval of an application for a Hotel &  

Restaurant Liquor License at 10047 Park Meadows Drive, Unit F, Lone Tree, 
Colorado 80124.  The Application was submitted on a form prescribed by the State 
Licensing Authority pursuant to statute, and said application appears to be complete 
in all material respects.  The required fees accompanied the application. 

 
3. The Council has reviewed the Individual History Records of the owners and the 

managers. Council finds that the Applicant has satisfied the requirements of the 
Colorado Liquor Code and Regulations with respect to character, record, and 
reputation. 

 
4. The Applicant has evidenced possession of the subject property through a 2nd Consent 

to Assignment and Amendment to the lease agreement which expires on September 
30, 2017 

 
5. The premise was posted in accordance with the law, for a period of not less than ten 

consecutive days prior to the date of said public hearing on the application, and 
published notice was accomplished by publication in a newspaper of general 
circulation in Douglas County. 

 
6. Petitions containing 158 valid signatures in favor of and 1 valid signature in 

opposition to the issuance of the license were presented to and considered by the 
Council.  

 
7.  No one appeared in opposition. 

 
    The City Council, acting as the Local Licensing Authority, having 
considered and weighed the foregoing, as well as the facts and evidence adduced by the 
Council’s investigation, expressions of opinion as to the needs and desires of the inhabitants of 
the neighborhood contained in the aforementioned Petitions and all other facts, data and 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 64



 

City Council Minutes Page 7 of 7 January 7, 2014 

testimony, NOW FINDS that the Applicant has demonstrated, with respect to the application, 
that the needs and desires of the neighborhood are not adequately being served at this time. 
 
 Accordingly, the City Council hereby affirms its approval of the application of J&L 
Concepts, LLC dba Cranelli’s, 10047 Park Meadows Dr., Unit F, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
 

The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Liquor Licensing Administrator 
to submit the necessary report and approved application to the State Licensing Authority 
in accordance with the law. 

 
 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO, acting as Local Licensing Authority. 

 
 
     

 CITY OF LONE TREE: 
 
 
 
By:____/s/______________________ 
      Jennifer Pettinger 
      Liquor License Administrator 
 
 
Date:  January 7, 2014 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 64



 

 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 

 
AGENDA ITEM: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for GMRI, Inc. d/b/a Seasons 

52 #4544 
 

MEETING DATE: January 21, 2014 
 
STAFF PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE: Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DESCRIPTION: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for GMRI, Inc. d/b/a Seasons 

52 #4544, 8325 Park Meadows Center Drive, Lone Tree, 
Colorado. 

 
SUMMARY: The application for a new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License at 

the above location was submitted and complete in all material 
respects.  The necessary fees accompanied the application. 

 
 This establishment is located at 8325 Park Meadows Center Drive. 

A Ground Lease Agreement was entered into between Park 
Meadows Mall, LLC, Landlord, and GMRI, Inc., Tenant.  The 
lease expiration date is October 31, 2026. 

  
 Documents reviewed include the License Application, Individual 

History Records, Lone Tree Business License, Certificate of Good 
Standing issued by the Colorado Secretary of State, Red-lined 
Drawing of the Premises, Affidavit of Posting, Affidavit of 
Publication and Petitions.   

  
The State Liquor Enforcement Division created, at the request of 
GMRI, Inc., a Master File for GMRI, Inc. d/b/a Red Lobster & The 
Olive Garden Italian Restaurant in 2010. The Individual History 
Records filed with this application are for the same three persons 
who submitted fingerprint cards and Individual History Records to 
the State Liquor Enforcement Division, who conducted the 
background checks in 2010 with no adverse results.  According to 
the State Liquor Enforcement Division the Master File is issued to 
the corporation and applies to the Seasons 52 #4544 application; 
therefore, the persons listed on the Master File were not 
fingerprinted by the City of Lone Tree for this application. 
 
All posting and publication requirements were met and the petition 
results reviewed.  Staff recommends approval of the application 
conditional upon the applicant obtaining all necessary approvals 
and a Certificate of Occupancy for the property. 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 64



 

 

 
A Hotel and Restaurant licensee must have full meals available 
until 8:00 p.m. everyday, and snacks and sandwiches after 8:00 
p.m.  Food sales must provide at least 25% of the gross income 
from the sale of food and drink of the license premises over any 
period of time of at least one year. 

 
RECOMMENDED 
COUNCIL ACTION: Convene the Public Hearing for a new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor 

License and consider a motion to approve the application for a 
Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License conditional upon the 
applicant obtaining all necessary approvals and a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the property. 

.   
 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 64



01/21/14
C

ity C
ouncil P

acket
P

age 20 of 64



01/21/14
C

ity C
ouncil P

acket
P

age 21 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 64



01/21/14City Council PacketPage 34 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 64



01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 64



 

 1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS, DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL 
DISTRICT RE-1, DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARIES, THE TOWN OF CASTLE ROCK, 

THE TOWN OF PARKER, THE CITY OF LONE TREE AND HIGHLANDS RANCH 
METRO DISTRICT, CONCERNING THE CONTINUED IMPLEMENTATION AND 

2014 FUNDING OF THE DOUGLAS COUNTY YOUTH INITIATIVE PROGRAM 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this ___ day of __________, 20__, 
by and between the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Douglas, Douglas County 
School District RE-1, the Douglas County Libraries system, the Town of Castle Rock, the Town 
of Parker, the City of Lone Tree and the Highlands Ranch Metro District, hereinafter referred to 
jointly as the “Parties”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article XIV, Section 18(2)(a) of the Colorado Constitution, and section 29-
1-203, C.R.S. provide a means whereby governmental units may cooperate or contract with one 
another to make the most efficient and effective use of their powers and responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions in connection with 
the continuing implementation and operation of a collaborative effort known as the Douglas 
County Youth Initiative Program (“Program”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Program will include a Youth Services Program Manager, Program 
Initiatives such as WrapAround and Youth Congress, Community Coalitions, and an Advisory 
Board of the Youth Initiative; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to share the costs of implementing and operating 
the Program in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained 
herein and the recitals as set forth above, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. Subject Matter of Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the understanding of 
the Parties associated with the exchange of consideration, the ongoing costs and management of 
the Program and the responsibilities of the Parties under this Agreement. 

 
Section 2. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective for a period of one 

year, beginning January 1, 2014, subject to annual appropriation of funds by all Parties hereto.  
In accordance with statute, if any Party to this Agreement should decide, in adopting the budget 
for subsequent Agreement years, not to provide funding for the Program, then that Party may 
withdraw from participation in this Agreement for future terms by giving written notice thereof 
to the other Parties and the remaining Parties shall have the option to negotiate and continue a 
cost sharing arrangement and operation of the Program for another one year period.  
 
 
 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 64



 

 2 

Section 3. Relationship of the Parties.  This Agreement is not intended to, and will not 
constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize a joint venture, partnership, or formal 
business association or organization of any kind between the Parties, and the rights and 
obligations of the Parties shall be only those expressly set forth in this Agreement.   

 
Section 4. Appointment of Program Services Manager.  The Parties agree that the 

individual hired as the Youth Services Program Manager will be a Douglas County employee for 
all purposes and with the same benefits and at-will employment status as other County 
employees.  The activities and performance of the Youth Services Program Manager will be 
subject to review by the Deputy County Manager with input from the Program Executive Board. 
 

Section 5. Cost Sharing.  The Parties agree to provide the following funding for the 2014 
calendar year period: 

 
A. Beginning January 1, 2014, and concluding December 31, 2014, the basic 

estimated cost of implementing and operating the Program is $170,500. 
The Parties agree to pay the following cost sharing amounts: 

 
Douglas County School District Re-1: $35,750 
Douglas County:    $35,750 
Douglas County Libraries    $19,800 
Town of Castle Rock:    $19,800 
Town of Parker:    $19,800 
City of Lone Tree:    $19,800 
Highlands Ranch Metro District  $19,800 

 
B. Douglas County shall be the recipient of the contributed funds as Douglas 

County will be the Party responsible for hiring the Youth Services 
Program Manager.  The funds received for the Youth Services Program 
Manager shall be spent for costs directly associated with that position.  
Payments may be made annually or semi-annually at the discretion of the 
participating Parties.   

  
 Payments:  Payments may be paid: 
 

· One time payment due upon receipt of fully executed IGA 
· ½ due upon receipt of fully executed IGA and remaining ½ due by July 

2014. 
 
Payments can be made by check payable to Douglas County.    
 
 
 
 

 
 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 64



 

 3 

Section 6. Responsibilities of the Parties. 
 

A. The Advisory Board shall be made up of one representative from each 
participating Party; each funding entity will have representation; and the 
Advisory Board shall be responsible for the following: 

 
(i) Provide feedback into the recruitment, hiring, and evaluation of the 

Youth Services Program Manager, although the final hiring and 
any and all other employment-related decisions shall be made by 
Douglas County in accordance with applicable Douglas County 
employment procedures and policies. 

(ii) Act as a regular liaison with the agencies they represent. 
(iii) Provide oversight and direction for the Program, on behalf of their 

constituents.  
(iv) Participate with the Parties in the annual evaluation of the 

Program. 
 
B. The Parties shall be responsible for the following: 
 

(i) Participate with the implementation and operation of the Program. 
(ii) Provide a regular liaison to the meetings of the Advisory Board. 
(iii) Participate with the annual evaluation of the Program. 

 
C. The responsibility for providing office space and basic office supplies for 

the Youth Services Program Manager shall be the responsibility of 
Douglas County, including a dedicated telephone line and computer email 
and internet access.  The value of these benefits will be in addition to that 
covered in Section 5 (A) above. 

 
Section 7.  Specific duties of the Youth Services Program Manager. 

 
The specific duties and responsibilities of the Program Services Manager are set 
forth in Attachments I, and II, to this Agreement, and are incorporated herein by 
this reference, and are summarized as follows: 
 
A.   Attachment I:  Bylaws of the Douglas County Youth Initiative Advisory 

Board.  The Advisory Board oversees the Program Manager position and 
provides programmatic guidance.. 

 
  B.. Attachment II:  Proposed 2014 Budget. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 64



 

 4 

Section 8. Notice.  Any notice required by this Agreement shall be given, in writing by U.S. 
postal mail, as follows: 

 
 

Town of Castle Rock:   Town of Castle Rock 
 100 N. Wilcox 
 Castle Rock, CO 80104 

 
 

Douglas County:   Douglas County Manager 
 100 Third Street 
 Castle Rock, CO 80104 

 
 
Douglas County School  Douglas County School District RE-1 
District RE-1:    620 Wilcox 
     Castle Rock, CO  80104 
 
 
Douglas County Libraries  Douglas County Libraries 
     100 S. Wilcox St. 
     Castle Rock, CO  80104 
 
 
Town of Parker:   Town of Parker 
     20120 E Mainstreet 
     Parker, CO  80138  
 
 
City of Lone Tree:   City of Lone Tree 

 9220 Kimmer Dr., Suite 100 
     Lone Tree, CO  80124 
 
Highlands Ranch Metro District Highlands Ranch Metro District 

62 Plaza Drive  
Highlands Ranch, CO 80129 

 
Section 9.  Applicable Law.  The Parties agree to comply with applicable federal, state and 

local statutes, charter provisions, ordinances, rules, regulations and standards as are in effect at 
the time this Agreement is executed.   

 
Section 10.  Non-waiver.  The Parties shall not be excused from complying with any 

provisions of this Agreement by failure of any party to insist upon or seek compliance with such 
provisions.   

 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 64



 

 5 

Section 11.  Severability.  Should any one or more provisions of this Agreement be 
determined to be illegal or unenforceable, all other provisions nevertheless shall remain 
effective. 
 

Section 12.  Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, modified, or changed, in 
whole or in part, only by written Agreement executed by the Parties hereto.   
 

Section 13.  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to 
such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties herein, and nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such 
Agreement.  It is the express intention of the parties that any person other than the Parties herein 
receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental 
beneficiary only. 

 
Section 14.  Assignability.  No party hereto shall assign its rights or delegate its duties 

hereunder without the prior written consent of the other Parties. 
 

Section 15.  Headings for Convenience.  Headings and titles contained herein are intended 
for the convenience and reference of the Parties only and are not intended to combine, limit, or 
describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement. 

 
Section 16.  Governmental Immunity.  The Parties hereto understand and agree that the 

Parties, their commissioners, council, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees, are 
relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive by any provisions of this Agreement, the 
monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities and protections provided by the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101 to 120, C.R.S., or otherwise available to the Parties.  
 

Section 17.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the 
Parties hereto.  The Parties agree there has been no representations made other than those 
contained herein, that this Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement, and further agree that the 
various promises and covenants contained herein are mutually agreed upon and are in 
consideration for one another. 

 
Section 18.  Execution. This Agreement is expressly subject to, and shall not be or become 

effective or binding on the Parties until execution by all signatories of the Parties. 
 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 64



 

 6 

 
 
 
 
The Board of County Commissioners of the 
County of Douglas   

 
 
 
     By:_________________________________ 
     Doug DeBord, County Manager 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
By:________________________________ 
Melissa Pelletier, Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
 
       
 
Chris Pratt, Assistant County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 
 
 
       
Andrew Copland, Director of Finance for Douglas County 
 
 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 64



 

 7 

 
     Douglas County School District RE-1 
      
 
 
 
     By:_________________________________ 
     John Carson, President of the Board of Education  
      for Douglas County School District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Nona Eichelberger, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Richard Bump, Board Legal Counsel 
 
 
 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 64



 

 8 

       
     Town of Parker 
 
 
 
     By:________________________________  
     Mike Waid, Mayor 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Carol Baumgartner, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
James S. Maloney, Town Attorney 
 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 64



 

 9 

 
     City of Lone Tree 
 
     By:________________________________ 
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney   

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 64



 

 10 

     Town of Castle Rock 
 
 
     By:_________________________________ 
     Mark Stevens, Town Manager 
 
       
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Sally A. Misare, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Robert J. Slenz, Town Attorney 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 64



 

 11 

 
Douglas County Libraries 

 
 
 
     By:_______________________________________  
     Jamie LaRue, Executive Director 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Aspen Walker 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
Tamara K. Gilida 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 64



 

 12 

Highlands Ranch Metro District 
 
 
 
     By:_______________________________________  
     Terry Nolan, General Manager 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 
___________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT I – BYLAWS 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 64



 

 13 

 
BYLAWS 

of the 
DOUGLAS COUNTY YOUTH INITIATIVE 

 
Article I: Name. The name of this organization shall be Douglas County Youth Initiative (the 
“Youth Initiative”). 
 
Article II: Purpose. The purpose of the Youth Initiative is to unite the Douglas County 
community, including youth, parents, agencies, governments, schools, nonprofits and other 
adults, in our mutual efforts to: 

 
· Identify gaps and collaborate effectively to create a seamless continuum of 

services. 
· Advocate for system improvements that will better serve youth and families of 

Douglas County. 
· Support youth and encourage their contributions to the broader community. 
· Effectively intervene with youth who are endangered by their decisions and/or 

situation. 
· Support and expand opportunities for youth to express viewpoints. 
· Support parents and caregivers with resources, education and unconditional care. 

 
These goals shall be achieved by means of programs as determined by the Advisory Board, 
which may include, but are not limited to, Youth Congress, the WrapArounD program, and a 
Day of Service. 
 
Article III: Advisory Board. 
 
Section 1: Composition. Each funding entity for the Youth Initiative shall appoint one or 
more representatives to serve on the Youth Initiative Advisory Board. When any member of the 
Advisory Board is unable to continue as a member, the funding entity shall appoint a 
replacement member to fill the vacancy on the Advisory Board. 
 
Section 2: Duties of the Advisory Board. The Advisory Board shall oversee the 
operations of the Youth Initiative. Such duties shall include the following: 

 
· Programmatic guidance to the Program Manager of the Youth Initiative; 
· Along with Douglas County, annual approval of the Youth Initiative 
· budget; 
· Review and monitoring of the operations of the Youth Initiative in order to 

ensure achievement of the purposes of the Youth Initiative; 
· Consultation and advisement regarding employment of the Youth 
 Initiative Program Manager as well as employment and/or contracts of 

other Youth Initiative staff; 
· Make recommendations to Douglas County as the employer of the Youth 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 64



 

 14 

 Initiative Program Manager and the fiscal agent for the Youth Initiative as 
to Program Manager performance, fiscal matters, and Youth Initiative 
operations; and; 

· Make recommendations to the Partnership of Douglas County 
· Governments as to the overall operations and funding of the DCYI 

 
Section 3: Officers. The Advisory Board shall select from among its ranks officers in 
the following positions: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and such other officers 
as the Advisory Board deems necessary. 
 
Section 4: Duties of the Officers. The duties of the officers shall be those established by 
the Advisory Board and shall include the following: 

 President: Set the agenda for meetings, in conjunction with the Youth 
Initiative Program Manager; chair meetings and facilitate discussion 

 Vice President: Perform the duties of the President in the absence or 
incapacity of the President 

 Secretary: Oversee records of the Advisory Board; record meeting 
activities, votes, and proceedings; generate and distribute meeting minutes 

 Treasurer: Oversee financial records of the Youth Initiative and 
periodically report on the financial condition of the Youth Initiative to the 
Advisory Board on at least a quarterly basis. 
 
Section 5: Election or Appointment of Officers. Officers shall be elected on an annual 
basis at the first regular meeting of each calendar year or at such time as members of the 
Advisory Board shall in its discretion determine. In the event of a vacancy during the year or in 
the event that the representative appointed by a funding entity to serve as a member of the Youth 
Initiative Advisory Board and who has been elected to serve as an Officer shall cease to be a 
member of the Advisory Board, the Advisory Board shall elect a successor from its membership 
at the next regular meeting and such successor shall serve the unexpired term of the office. 
Article IV: Primary Operations. The Youth Initiative Program Manager shall be an employee of 
Douglas County and shall office in such location as established in the discretion of Douglas 
County. Douglas County shall be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Youth 
Initiative and shall be authorized to staff the Youth Initiative as may be necessary to carry out the 
purpose and function of the Youth Initiative as set by the Advisory Board. 
 
Article V: Meetings of the Advisory Board. 
 
Section 1: Regular Meetings. The Advisory Board shall meet no less than quarterly. 
Section 2: Special Meetings. The President of the Board may, when s/he deems it 
expedient, and shall, upon written request of three Board members, call a special meeting for the 
purpose of conducting business designated in the call. Notice of special meetings shall be 
delivered to Board members no less than two business days prior to such meeting. Business 
conducted as special meetings shall be limited to that designated in the call, unless all members 
of the Board are present. 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 64



 

 15 

 
Section 3: Quorum. Action by the Advisory Board shall only take place if a quorum is 
present. A quorum of the Advisory Board shall consist of a simple majority of the funding 
entities of the Youth Initiative. If a funding entity has appointed more than one representative to 
serve on the Advisory Board, only one representative shall count for purposes of determining 
whether there is a quorum of the Advisory Board. 
 
Section 4: Meeting Attendance. When a member of the Advisory Board is unable to 
attend a meeting, the funding entity may appoint an alternate to participate in the decision 
making processes on behalf of the member jurisdiction. 
 
Article VI: Amendments to the Bylaws. The bylaws of the Youth Initiative shall be amended 
only with the approval of a majority of the Advisory Board at a regular or special meeting, but 
no such amendment shall be adopted unless at least five business days written notice thereof has 
been previously been given to all members of the Advisory Board. 
 
Approved January 9, 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT II – BUDGET 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 64



 

 16 

 
Douglas County Youth Initiative Budget 
2014      

 
Douglas County Youth Initiative 
Budget 2014 

 
    Revenue 

   CR IGA 
  

19,800.00 
LT IGA 

  
19,800.00 

Parker IGA 
  

19,800.00 
Library IGA 

  
19,800.00 

HR Metro IGA 
  

19,800.00 
DCSD IGA 

  
35,750.00 

County IGA 
  

35,750.00 
DCSD extra $ 

  
40,000.00 

DC extra $/Miller grant 
 

40,000.00 
TANF 

  
35,788.00 

    Total Revenue 
  

286,288.00 
 
 
Expenses 
 
Program Manager              90,056.00 
Cell Phones                 2,350.00 
Mileage               12,000.00 
Worker’s Comp                2,160.00 
Coaching/Training                    5,000.00 
Youth Congress                5,000.00 
WRAP (3)                        119,500.00 
Health Ins (3)               19,799.00 
Supplies/Misc                 5,000.00 
New Programs                 5,000.00 
Reserve for new hire              20,423.00 
 
Total Expenses              286,288.00  

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 64



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-01 

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER  

TO THE YOUTH COMMISSION  
FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution 09-02, the City Council created the Youth Commission (the 

Commission) which advises the City on matters pertaining to youth and youth interest in the City 
of Lone Tree; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution 09-02, the Commission is comprised of not more than seven 
and not less than five resident members, all of whom are residents of Lone Tree and currently 
enrolled in 8th through 12th grade; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Youth Commission currently has one vacancy due to the resignation of 
Jack Johnson, whose term expires on October 31, 2014; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint one Youth Commission member to fill 

that vacancy to expire on October 31, 2014, such appointments to be effective on the date of 
expiration of their previous term; and 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE 
TREE, COLORADO: 

 
That Kate Schaffer is hereby appointed to the Youth Commission  

to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Jack Johnson  
for the remainder of Mr. Johnson’s term, which expires on October 31, 2014.  

Ms. Schaffer’s appointment is effective as of the date of Mr. Johnson’s resignation. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF JANUARY, 2014. 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

01/21/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 64




